## MINUTES of the Council Meeting held on Monday 5<sup>th</sup> October 2020, at 7.30 pm – conducted remotely.

Present: Cllrs Taylor (Chair), Adams, Bridgeman, Burton, Faraday, Hill, Marshall, and Swales. CCllr Ireton. DCllr Brockbank. The Clerk Christine Downey. And eight members of the public.

To Receive Apologies from members unable to attend.

Cllrs Handford, Stannard and Wills. DCllr Handley.

To Receive and Record any member's Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in relation to any items on the agenda and to receive and decide members requests for DPI dispensations.

Cllr Marshall declared an interest in item 137.1, planning application,

Cllr Faraday declared an interest in item 140, accounts for payment, re payment to Low Bentham Victoria Institute.

Cllr Adams declared an interest in item 140, accounts for payment, re payment to Goodenber Road Area Association.

## To Receive Comment & Concerns:

Timothy Fox reported that he has spoken with Cllr Bridgeman and the Open Spaces committee regarding tree planting. There are a group of people associated with BEST Climate Action who wish to help plant trees in and around Bentham, and maybe hedges, depending on the landowners. They have some experience of planting trees and hedges and would be able to provide the labour and they have some trees that could be planted. Th question to the council is, do they have any sites in mind, apart from anything already planned? Timothy will also be approaching Stephen Dennis of Bentham Farmers.

Cllr Taylor responded that the land at St Margaret's belongs to Richard Turner, and the pathway to the cemetery belongs to John Lawson.

Cllr Marshall responded that he has recently spoken to Richard Lawson of Barnfield, and that Richard is not enthusiastic about planting trees along the road to the cemetery because he does sometimes have cows in that field. But he was not averse to the council cleaning up the road edging. Cllr Marshall went on to report that the land to St Margaret's is now owned by the owners of The Wenning, and that the banking on either side of the road between the stream and the road belongs to Network Rail.

Charlotte Munday asked a question on behalf of the Quakers of Bentham, about the Community Youth Building on Main Street. The Quakers have heard that the roof needs doing, and other maintenance work, and that the cost might be unsustainable. The building used to be the Quaker meeting house, and although they have no authority and nothing to offer, they would like to know what the position is and the future plans for the building. And also, related to that, if there are any plans for provision for the young people of Bentham.

The response from Cllr Taylor, Cllr Adams and the clerk was that the council have had discussion about this but that so far no conclusion has been reached; an assessment of the cost of bringing the building up to standard has been done and the cost is more that in available, and more than it is feasible to spend of public money for the amount of usage; the council have had a meeting with the trustee of the Youth Café and a second meeting was being scheduled to progress the matter, but that has been brought to a halt by the Covid situation; and that the youth provision in Bentham is currently the responsibility of the Youth Café, who are only prohibited from using the building at the moment by the Covid guideline, and not because of the condition of the building, as far as the council is aware.

Pam Jordan a trustee of the North Carven Heritage Trust gave an update on what they have been doing since they sent their email of 08/09/2020, which will be discussed at item 136. They have been in contact with like minded organisations in the area and as a result have submitted a joint response to the government consultation document on changes to the present planning system, which closed last Thursday. In that response

they, along with the North Craven Building Preservation Trust, The Craven Community Land Trust, and the Friends of the Dales, voiced their disquiet firstly at the timing of the proposed changes, coming as they do at the same time as local authorities are meant to be contemplating forming unitary authorities and secondly about their worries regrading what will happen to all the local plans in the mix-up that will ensue, as these seem paramount to the government's proposals. They also highlighted their concern about the use of algorithms to set planning policy, look what happened to the A level results. They also explained that they feel that the proposals are urban centric and that in areas such as ours there would be less affordable housing available as developments of the 40 or 50 would temporarily not have to have a percentage of that type of housing, as they have to do at the moment. This would be most of the development in Craven and there would be a lack of local democracy as there would be areas where development would be automatically approved. They are now concentrating on their response to the white paper which has to be in late this month, and look forward to hearing councillors' views on that later in the meeting.

Anne Read was invited to speak and tried to do so, but unfortunately, she could not be heard, there was no sound whatsoever.

131 To Confirm the Minutes of the previous meeting on 7th September 2020. (Paper 2020/92)

> RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meetings of 7th September 2020 are agreed and be signed.

To receive the Clerks Report (for information only). (Paper 2020/93)

RECEIVED: See the end of these minutes for the clerk's report.

133 Police matters: -

> 133.1 To receive the Police Report & allow members to ask questions for information.

> > RECEIVED: See the end of these minutes for the police report.

133.2 To receive correspondence from PC Andy McClurg regarding his move from Ingleton to Skipton. (Paper 2020/94)

> RESOLVED: Clerk to send a message of thanks to Andy from the Town Council and to wish him well with his move.

To receive a report from the Public Safety Officer & allow members to ask questions for information.

Craig Lyons reported that it's been a quiet month due to Covid restrictions. That he is now a Community First Responder. That he will be working with the local community to make Bonfire night as safe as possible. This will include working with local retailers to ensure that fireworks are not sold to the under 18's, and that they are stricter with ID.

135 To receive Reports from CCllrs & DCllr

> CCIIr Ireton reported that the combined authority's initiative seems to have come to a standstill, due to the fact that the letter of invitation from the Government has not been sent out to the various councils, including the county council. The reason is not known. Touching on Covid, North Yorkshire has seen a big increase this last week or ten days, and unfortunately Craven District Council area is the biggest in North Yorkshire. Not too surprising as close to several hot spots, most of the cases in Craven are in the South of Craven. Councillor Ireton went on to agree to find out from NYCC when the work on the road surface between the county boundary and the Punchbowl on the B6480 will be completed.

> DCIIr Brockbank gave an update on the extra care housing project. Originally the scheduled completion date was Feb 2021, and it is now 24/06/2021. Housing 21 held a coffee morning at which they collected names for their enquiry list. Leaflets about the development will be circulated in the November edition of the Bentham News. The launch date is 21/01/2021, and there are 22 names on the rental list and 46 on the list

132

134

for shared ownership. Housing 21 are hoping that the leaflet drop in the Bentham News will increase these numbers. Councillor Brockbank can provide an email address if anybody wishes to express an interest, and this will also be in November's BN. She went on to report that Craven are building four shared ownership houses off Duke Street, and a number near Banks Rise; planning permission has now been granted.

And she asked if the council are aware of the "Reopening the High Street" fund; it was pointed out that this matter is on the agenda for discussion at item 139.4.

136

To discuss correspondence received regarding local government reorganisation and to agree a response and/or a way forward: -

136.1 From North Craven Heritage Trust, dated 09/09/2020. (Pape 2020/95)

The request from the North Craven Heritage Trust was for any views that the council might wish to express, that could be taken into account when formulating their response to the White Paper "Planning for the Future" consultation document.

As the deadline for the response was 17/09/2020 both the North Craven Heritage Trust and Bentham Town Council have now submitted their responses to the consultation document

RESOLVED: no further action as responses already submitted.

137

**Planning** 

- 137.1 To consider and comment upon new planning applications: -
  - 137.1.1 2020/21827/FUL Construction of building to house dairy cattle. At Ridding Lane Farm, Clapham Road, High Bentham, Lancaster, LA2 7AH.

Cllr Marshall left the room for this item.

RESOLVED: That the council has no objection to this application.

- 137.2 To receive Planning Decisions see clerk's report
- To receive Correspondence on Planning Issues: To consider and agree a response to NALC on theses issue:
  - 137.3.1 Planning for the future (deadline 15/10/2020). (Paper 2020/96)

The council recognised that it is extremely difficult to respond to such a complicated consultation document without the necessary legal and/or planning training and thanked Cllrs Bridgeman and Swales for their excellent work on this consultation.

RESOLVED: That the response as drafted by Cllrs Bridgeman and Swales should be submitted.

137.3.2 Transparency and competition: a call for evidence on data on land control (deadline 16/10/2020). (Paper 2020/97)

RESOLVED: That the response as drafted by Cllrs Bridgeman and Swales should be submitted, subject to any additional information that the clerk can supply at the identified questions.

138

**Highways Matters** 

To consider and note Highway Matters for information – if any (Councillors can comment on any minor Highways issues causing concern)

It was reported that as a result of the recent road works on Goodenber Road that the road was left blocked at various times on Thursday, Friday and over the weekend, without sufficient space for the fire engine to pass through. Cllr Adams helped move the signs and cones aside at one point to allow the fire engine to attend a fire. As this is a serious safety problem, he reported the matter to ENW several times, but did not receive a satisfactory response.

Although the issue on Goodenber Road has now been resolved, it was agreed that the way in which permits are issued by NYCC to utility companies to perform work, without due care and attention being paid to the maintenance of access routes for emergency vehicles, is a grave concern.

RESOLVED: CCIIr Ireton will take this matter up with NYCC and report back in due course.

RESOLVED: The clerk to contact both ENW and NYCC and express the council's dissatisfaction with the lack of due care and attention to the maintenance of access routes for emergency vehicles, at all times.

To review and agree to sign the Heads of terms from Aptus Utilities regarding Robin Lane High Bentham, or agree a way forward. (Paper 2020/98)

RESOLVED: Clerk to refer this document to the council's solicitor for appropriate action.

Covid 19 related matters, to be discussed and considered and a way forward agreed regarding: -

139.1 Opening the disabled toilet to the public.

139

RESOLVED: To reopen the disabled toilet.

RESOLVED: To obtain and display a QR code.

RESOLVED: to display the general information posters that Cllr Marshall will email to the clerk.

139.2 Making arrangements for casual and/or supply staff.

RESOLVED: To be considered at the next full council meeting.

139.3 Procedures for decision making in emergencies.

RESOLVED: Where it is necessary to make a decision urgently, in an emergency situation and in order to make something safe, that decision will be taken by the Chairman and/or the Vicechair in consultation with the clerk, and the matter will be included on the agenda for discussion at the next council meeting.

RESOLVED: Clerk to establish if it is legally permissible to convene a council meeting with less than three clear days' notice in an emergency and to report back.

139.4 Reopening High Street Fund from Carven DC

139.4.1 Positioning of five planters

RESOLVED: To be installed at School Hill.

139.4.2 Positioning of six hand sanitizer stations

RESOLVED: Cllr Marshall to provide clerk with a list of the positions.

139.4.3 Installation arrangements for the planters and sanitizer stations.

RESOLVED: Clerk to instruct Thomas Brown to install the hand sanitizers.

RESOLVED: Clerk to advise the Ingleton garden centre of the position for the planters and request that they proceed with installation.

To agree the accounts for payment:

Accounts for Payment 05/10/2020: -

Staff	Salaries	2629.60
Andrew Tennant	Grass cutting	720.00
HMRC	PAYE/NIC	1640.92
DAB Graphics	Way markers for Heritage Trail	346.80
Rogerson Commercial and	Clearing gutters at CYB	100.00
Domestic Window		
Cleaning		
Stannah	Lift Service	189.77
Thomas Graham	Dangerous substances cabinet as	250.98
	recommended by Fire Risk Assessment	
Viking	Stationery	115.97
YLCA	Webinar: Social Media / Communications	15.00
Kingsdale Projects	Cemetery grass; other grass; Harley Close	2250.00
	grass; Tree at Lairgill.	
Goodenber Play Area	Precept Grant	600.00
Association		
Low Bentham Victoria	Precept Grant	2500.00
Institute		
Premium Credit Ltd	Insurance	330.27
Swalec Gas	Town Hall Gas	319.20

NEST	Pension	106.33
------	---------	--------

**RESOLVED: Approved** 

RESOLVED: To be authorised by Cllrs Adams and Faraday.

RESOLVED: Cllr Marshall to be the second authorisation on the payments to

Goodenber Play Area Low Bentham Victoria Institute.

141 To consider purchasing a copy of the new edition of the reference book "Local Council Administration" (Arnold Barker) at a cost of £119.00.

RESOLVED: Clerk to proceed with the purchase.

142 To receive the minutes from: -

> 142.1 Open Spaces meeting 14/09/2020. (Paper 2020/99)

142.2 Marketing meeting 14/09/2020. (Paper 2020/100)

RECEIVED.

143 To consider the recommendations from the Fire Risk Assessment and agree a way forward. (Paper 2020/101)

> RESOLVED: To fulfil as many of the recommendations from the fire risk assessment as possible.

> RESOLVED: To request three quotes for the various recommendations and refer back to buildings committee for further consideration and possible precepting.

> RESOLVED: CIIr Adams will install the bracket to hang the fire extinguisher backstage on the wall.

> RESOLVED: To amend the hire documents to limit public numbers to 220 in the Ballroom and 30 in the Wenningdale Room, with immediate effect.

> RESOLVED: The matter of exit door width (from Wenningdale room to car park) and possible widening of exit doors, to be referred to buildings committee for further consideration.

> RESOLVED: Clerk to forward a copy of the Fire Risk Assessment to both Westland Fire & Security, and Lakeland Fire Protection, and if possible to another qualified builder, requesting quotes for the works identified as needing professional attention.

> RESOLVED: Clerk to obtain quotes for fire rated shutter from SWS in Claughton and John Dukeson at Kelvin Shutter Doors in Low Bentham.

> RESOLVED: Clerk to obtain quotes for the joinery work to the fire doors from Tom Warburton and Leonard Tyrer, as well as Stephen Frankland.

144 To consider new contracts for: -

> 144.1 The Councils' unmetered electricity supply. (Paper 2020/102)

> > RESOLVED: To be considered at the next full council meeting.

144.2 The electric supply at the Town Hall. (Paper 2020/103)

> RESOLVED: To proceed with the 60-month contract with BG Lite, as recommended to **Bentham Town Council by Utility Alliance**

144.3 The gas supply at the Town Hall. (Paper 2020/104)

> RESOLVED: To proceed with the 60-month contract with Total Gas and Power, as recommended to Bentham Town Council by Utility Alliance.

To inform councillors about Bentham Allotment and Community Garden Association and discuss possible ways forward.

> Cllr Bridgeman reported that the Association has received thirty expressions of interest in allotments; that they are actively seeking suitable land; and are planning to put together a "complete package" for consideration by the council in due course. The "complete package" will cover all aspects of acquiring, providing and maintaining allotments, including details of the proposed site, the cost of the site, and the amount of rent to be paid by allotment holders.

145

RESOLVED: To consider any package/proposal presented to the council by the Bentham Allotment and Community Garden Association.

146

To consider if work and/or cleaning is required at School Hill before remembrance Sunday and agree actions.

RESOLVED: Clerk to instruct Thomas Brown to proceed with the annual clean of School Hill, including replacing the sand if necessary, after pressure washing.

147

To consider the following correspondence and to agree a way forward and/or a response: -

147.1

From the co-clerks for Bentham Quaker Meeting regarding the Community Youth Building. (Paper 2020/105)

RESOLVED: Clerk to respond explaining that a survey has been done and the cost of bringing the building into a satisfactory state of repair is almost certainly prohibitive; that the council has had a meeting with the trustees of the Bentham Youth Café who are the tenants of the building to discuss both the future of the building and the future of youth services in Bentham; that a follow up meeting was planned but is currently on hold due to Covid restrictions; and that any developments and/or decisions will be reported to them if and when they can be made.

RESOLVED: To ask the Quakers if they wish to reinvest in the building, make a contribution to the repair costs, or even buy it back.

The Public Safety Officer Craig Lyons reported at this point in the meeting that after the Covid restrictions are listed that there would be the possibility of the fire station being considered for use as a future venue for youth engagement, if the CYB becomes unsuitable. He advised the meeting that it is a community fire station and is open for public use, and that he would be happy to take a proposal to his superiors and facilitate this matter.

147.2

From Timothy Fox, on behalf of BEST, regarding a tree planting proposal. (Paper 2020/106)

RESOLVED: Dealt with at item 130, no further action.

148

To receive reports from councillors who represent the Council on other bodies (for information only) – if any.

None.

149

Items for next meeting and minor items only:

Cllr Marshall expressed very grateful thanks to the fire services from three local fire stations who attended a serious incident in Bentham recently.

Cllr Adams reported that there have been some comments on the council social media page regarding the choice of beneficiary for the proceeds from the sale of the 2021 Bentham& Beyond Calendar.

Update on position re Christmas Trees will be an item on the next agenda. Cllr Adams will chase this up.

Update re payment of the £1000 precept grant for 2020 to the Bentham Christmas Lights Committee will be an item on the next agenda. Clerk to request a report of the plans for the 2020 display from the committee.

150

Date of next meeting: 2<sup>nd</sup> November 2020.

There being no further business the meeting closed at 21.37.

## CLERK'S REPORT TO BENTHAM TOWN COUNCIL, 30th September 2020

- 1. Planning Decisions Received Since 31<sup>st</sup> August 2020 (Date of last clerk's report).
  - 1.1. GRANTED
    - 1.1.1. 2019/21321/FUL Change of use of land for the siting of 6 high quality camping pods, access road and parking spaces and landscaping: at Bentham Golf Club, Robin Lane, High Bentham, Lancaster, LA2 7AG.
    - 1.1.2. 2020/21311/FUL Four affordable homes and associated infrastructure. At Land at Duke Street, High Bentham, Lancaster.
    - 1.1.3. 2020/21641/FUL Change of use of agricultural grassland for the siting of 8 No. high quality glamping pods, a recreational and utility building, retention of an existing structure for use as a management suite and associated site works: at Land North of B6480, Bentham Lane, Bentham, Lancaster, LA2 7AJ.
    - 1.1.4. 2020/21619/FUL Demolition of barn and construction of agricultural building: at Bentham Hal, Low Bentham Road, High Bentham, LA2 7HS.
    - 1.1.5. 2020/21783/HH Garage side extension: at Millwood, Bentham Moor Road, High Bentham, Lancaster, LA2 7EX.
  - 1.2. REFUSED none
  - 1.3. WITHDRAWN none
- 2. Planning Correspondence: -
  - 2.1. Email from Stuart Booth asking if the Town Council get involved with pre-application discussions on potential planning alienations in Bentham. (Replied by email confirming that it has been done in the past, but that he may wish to pursue any pre-development discussions with Craven DC 02/09).
  - 2.2. Craven DC Planning Policy Consultation Draft Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document: Craven Local Plan. Draft Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document. Public consultation runs from Tuesday 1st September for a six-week period until Tuesday 13th October 2020. All representations should be received no later than Tuesday 13th October 2020. circulated 02/09.
- 3. Items circulated by email
  - 3.1. WWI & WWII Events Remembrance Sunday and Armistice/Poppy Day (2020): from Historical Promotion and Events Management. Circulated 02/09.
  - 3.2. LASRUG newsletter 16/09.
  - 3.3. Area 5 Skipton Response to request for paper gully map 04/09
  - 3.4. Community First Yorkshire
    - 3.4.1. Weekly updates
    - 3.4.2. North Yorkshire Young People's Providers and Partners Meeting, 7 Oct, 2-4pm, Zoom. Circulated 11/09
  - 3.5. Craven District Council
    - 3.5.1. Parish Liaison meeting of 30<sup>th</sup> September 2020 cancelled. Circulated 08/09.
    - 3.5.2. Letter regarding the display of NHS QR code poster. 28/09
    - 3.5.3. Your Craven Community News September 2020. 28/09
    - 3.5.4. Enterprising Craven Business News the latest information on the Covid-19 crisis & other news 28/09
  - 3.6. Lancaster City Council
    - 3.6.1. Local Plan News 28/09
    - 3.6.2. Review of the Local Plan 2020 2031. 28/09
  - 3.7. NALC
    - 3.7.1. Chief Executives Bulletin 04/09; 11/09; 28/09
    - 3.7.2. Newsletters
    - 3.7.3. Rebuilding Communities 08/09; 14/09
    - 3.7.4. NALC STATEMENT TOWN AND PARISH COUNCILS AND PARISH MEETINGS AND 'THE RULE OF SIX' 15/09
  - 3.8. NYCC

- 3.8.1. PLANNED ROAD CLOSURE NOTIFICATION 26810 Burton Road, Low Bentham: The Closure will be in place for a period of 15 hours between 22nd December 2020 and 22nd December 2020 to allow BT to access an underground structure. The closure will be in place between the hours of 09:30 and 15:30.: The Road Closure and any associated Diversion Routes can be viewed using this URL link https://one.network/?tm=118472739: Circulated 02/09,
- 3.8.2. PLANNED ROAD CLOSURE NOTIFICSATION 26952 Cross Lane, Low Bentham: The Closure will be in place for a period of 12 days between 12th October 2020 and 23rd October 2020 to allow S R Hall Groundworks Ltd to install a foul water sewer connection. The Road Closure and any associated Diversion Routes can be viewed using this URL link <a href="https://one.network/?tm=118606652">https://one.network/?tm=118606652</a>. Circulated 11/09.
- 3.8.3. Covid-19 Preventing and Managing Covid-19 in Sport and Gym Settings Local Guidance 28/09.
- 3.9. North Yorkshire Community Messaging North Yorkshire Police
  - 3.9.1. Weekly updates
  - 3.9.2. PPI Fraud 02/09
  - 3.9.3. Have YOUR Say on Road Safety to make sure North Yorkshire's voice is heard. 14/09
  - 3.9.4. Get involved in Commissioner's Public Accountability meeting 29 September 2020 Coronavirus response <a href="http://bit.ly/29Sept2020PAM">http://bit.ly/29Sept2020PAM</a>. Circulted 28/09
- 3.10. Rural Services Network
  - 3.10.1. Weekly updates
  - 3.10.2. The Rural Bulletin 02/09; 08/09; 28/09
  - 3.10.3. Rural Funding Digest September edition 03/09
- 3.11. YLCA
  - 3.11.1. White Rose updates 11/09, 28/09
  - 3.11.2.Protecting the parks that kept us going when the world stopped Fields in Trust with Jamie Leeson, Fields in Trust Wednesday, 9 September 10.00am, webinar: Circulated 03/09 and again 28/09
  - 3.11.3. Craven Branch meeting Wednesday 7<sup>th</sup> October at 6.45pm on Zoom. Details circulated 08/09. Agenda and previous minutes circulated 28/09.
  - 3.11.4.YLCA CRAVEN BRANCH MEETING ATTENDANCE OF OFFICERS FROM THE CRAVEN HIGHWAY AREA OFFICE. Details circulated 28/09.
  - 3.11.5. Councillors Discussion Forum webinars. Details circulated 28/09.
- 3.12. Coronavirus matters NALC Coronavirus update 14/09; 28/09
- 3.13. <u>Local Government Reorganisation</u>
  - 3.13.1. Working together to get change right Online consultation on local government reorganisation: Tuesday September 8th at 10am (circulated 04/09)
  - 3.13.2.Craven District Council; Parish Briefing Session on Local Government Reorganisation on 16<sup>th</sup> September limited to one representative. 08/09

## POLICE REPORT FOR BENTHAM TOWN COUNCIL 05/10/2020

Hello

Please find your monthly police report for Bentham Town Council meeting

We have had 39 incidents reported between 07.09.20 to 04.10.20

Reports include - General Admin from other Police force enquiries, Abandon call, Admin from other agencies, Sudden Death, Covid19, found property – Bike returned to owner

5 incidents relating to Young person's homes & school - joint partnership working with home & Police

- 10.09.20 X8 Criminal damage/Violence/Domestic
- 12.09.20 Crime Fraud Amazon Prime

- 13.09.20 & 27.09.20 Concern for welfare/safety checked in order joint partnership working
- 15.09.20 Burglary Scrap metal stolen Low Bentham
- 15.09.20 ASB Nuisance
- 17.09.20 & 28.09.20 ASB Nuisance Joint partnership working
- 18.09.20 Crime Theft Garden Tools stolen Banks Way
- 18.09.20 & 21.09.20 Domestic Incident
- 20.09.20 ASB Personal Dumped rubbish King Street
- 23.09.20 Crime Auto Vehicle broken into & nothing taken Mount Pleasant
- 24.09.20 Crime Theft Flower box stolen Horse & Farrier
- 27.09.20 Suspect male Robin Lane area search no gain
- 29.09.20 RTC 2 vehicle non injury Main Street
- 29.09.20 Crime Burglary Building Sports field nothing taken
- 01.10.20 Concern for Welfare Joint partnership working

Please report & suspect incidents at the time on 101 or 999 if urgent.

Working to keep North Yorkshire a safe place to live, visit & work please visit

www.northyorkshire.police.uk

Useful site re Crime and policing in England which allows you to search re incident recorded in your area www.police.uk

You can also report safety issues under speed concerns on - www.roadwise.co.uk.

If anyone would like to sign up to Craven Community messaging then please visit -

www.northyorkshirecommunitymessaging.org

**Contact Information:** 

- 1 Ring 999 in an emergency or to report a crime in progress
- 2 Ring 101 to report incidents or provide information
- 3 Ring Crime Stoppers on 0800 555 111 to remain anonymous
- 4 E-mail SNACraven@northyorkshire.pnn.police.uk

**Kind Regards** 

Jayne

PCSO Jayne Grace
Collar number 5561
Dedicated Safer Neighbourhood PCSO
Settle Ingleton & Bentham area
North Yorkshire Police
101.

Jayne.Grace@northyorkshire.pnn.police.uk